
1 

 

 
 
VIRGINIA RESEARCH INVESTMENT COMMITTEE 
MEETING 
AUGUST 13, 2019 
MINUTES  
 
Peter Blake (chair) called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. in the SCHEV Main Conference Room, 9th 
Floor, James Monroe Building, Richmond, Virginia. 
 
Committee members present: Brian Ball, Peter Blake, James Dyke, Heywood Fralin, Doug 
Juanarena, April Kees, Aubrey Layne, Robert Vaughn 
 
Committee members absent: Jason Powell, Todd Stottlemyer 
 
SCHEV Council members present: Henry Light, Tom Slater 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Mr. Blake reported that staff had not received any requests for public comment in advance of the 
meeting, in accordance with the process published in the public meeting notice. Mr. Blake called for 
public comment from attendees, and none was offered. 
 
 
ACTION ON MEETING MINUTES 
Upon a motion by Secretary Layne, seconded by Mr. Dyke, the minutes from the June 11, 2019, 
meeting were approved unanimously. 
 
 
REMARKS FROM CHAIR 
 
Mr. Blake asked members to save the date of October 2 for the Virginia Academy of Sciences, 
Engineering and Medicine’s annual event at the National Academies Building on Constitution Avenue 
in Washington, DC. He reminded members that they had requested the opportunity for a “board 
mixer.” He stated that a formal invitation would come via email from Senator Mark Warner and that 
the boards of the Virginia Bioscience Health Research Corporation, the Commonwealth Health 
Research Board and the Center for Innovative Technology also would be invited. Mr. Blake then 
introduced Dr. James Aylor, President of VASEM, who spoke briefly about the VASEM mission. Mr. 
Blake also thanked Drew Densmore, the former Executive Director of VASEM, who was not present, 
for his support and assistance to VRIC. 
 
Mr. Blake informed members that Virginia Bio has selected a new Chief Executive Officer (CEO) as 
Jeff Gallagher transitions to the role of Senior Advisor to the CEO and the Board. He stated that John 
Newby, former Commissioner of the Department of Veterans Services, took the reins of Virginia Bio 
on August 5. He thanked Jeff, who was not present, and Virginia Bio for their partnership with VRIC. 
 
Mr. Blake introduced Robby Demeria, Deputy Secretary of Commerce and Trade for Technology.  
 
Mr. Demeria provided a brief update on his efforts to develop a plan for transforming the approach 
that the Commonwealth uses to invest in research. He stated that 481 participants attended 11 town 
hall meetings. He said that many people completed the online survey, including a large number of 
entrepreneurs and founders, which were part of his target audience. He has scheduled three work 
groups to meet in August. He said that his effort could yield draft legislation in September and that he 

VRIC 



2 

 

would seek input from General Assembly staff and others before building consensus for the proposed 
legislation in October. He stated that he has been talking to legislators to identify potential patrons to 
introduce any forthcoming bill(s). He said that he would provide additional information at the October 8 
VRIC meeting, when he would have more details to discuss, and the Committee would have more 
time for such discussion. 
 
Mr. Demeria then introduced Stuart Henderson, Director of the Thomas Jefferson National 
Accelerator Facility (Jefferson Lab or JLAB). 
 
Dr. Henderson presented a deck of PowerPoint slides and introduced an opportunity for the 
Commonwealth involving JLAB’s electron-ion collider and the U.S. Department of Energy.  
 
Secretary Ball said that he is very excited about this important economic development opportunity, 
which is analogous to incentivizing a company to locate in and bring jobs to Virginia. He believes that 
the Department of Energy funding for the ion collider would bring high-paying jobs, along with a 
significant capital investment.  
 
Mr. Blake asked for comment from Frances Bradford, Deputy Secretary of Education. Ms. Bradford 
stated that she is supportive because the initiative is bringing together the public higher education 
institutions to collaborate. She said she is impressed by the science opportunity this would bring to 
Virginia. 
 
Mr. Dyke expressed his support and inquired of any specific actions VRIC could take to support the 
effort. Other members agreed that they are in support. 
 
 
DISCUSSION AND ACTION – CALLS FOR PROPOSALS 
 
Mr. Blake introduced the topic and reminded members that Round 3 arose from the detailed analysis 
conducted by TEConomy Partners regarding the operations of the research commercialization offices 
at the public institutions of higher education. He stated that Round 4 has been under discussion for 
some time and that, at the June 2019 meeting, Committee members asked staff to seek letters of 
intent from institutions to bring to the meeting today. He stated that the institutions informed staff that 
the timeframe was too short. He stated that the Round 4 instructions did not include a pre-proposal 
phase or a letter-of-intent phase, but that members could instruct staff to add such. 
 
Mr. Blake asked Ms. Seuffert to inform members about each of the competitions. 
 

a. VRIF Round 3 – Research Commercialization Advancement Plans 
 
Ms. Seuffert provided a brief overview of the Round 3 Call for Proposals and offered examples of 
the types of projects that applicants might propose.  
 
Mr. Juanarena moved the following resolution, seconded by Mr. Vaughn. 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Virginia Research Investment Committee authorizes 
the release of the Call for Proposals for the Round 3 Competition of the 
Virginia Research Investment Fund: Research Commercialization 
Advancement Plans, in accordance with Va. Code § 23.1-3133 C. This 
authorization further delegates to the VRIC chair the authority to approve (1) 
technical corrections and clarifications to the Call for Proposals throughout 
the application process and (2) applicants’ requests for protection from 



3 

 

disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act, as described in the Call 
document. 

 
The resolution was approved unanimously. 
 
b. VRIF Round 4 – Comprehensive Supportive Services for Proof of Concept and 

Commercialization 
 

Ms. Seuffert provided a brief overview of the Round 4 Call for Proposals. 
 
Mr. Vaughn stated that the leaders of the Commonwealth Cyber Initiative must lead the proposal 
for the cybersecurity research domain. 
 
Members discussed the five strategic opportunity areas listed in the Call for Proposals, with some 
members suggesting that the competition should allow proposals for other domains to compete, 
and others suggesting that individual viable technologies from any domain area should be eligible 
for supportive services and proof of concept funding. Several members stated that considerable 
thought and analysis informed the choice of the five domains as a way to concentrate limited 
resources and that, while Virginia has other needs and should be nimble in responding to 
emerging areas of research, they preferred to start with the five areas and remain alert in the 
future for additional opportunity areas. 
 
Members agreed not to insert a letter-of-intent step into the competition process. 
 
Secretary Layne moved the following resolution, seconded by Mr. Juanarena. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Virginia Research Investment Committee authorizes the 

release of the Call for Proposals for the Round 4 Competition of the Virginia 
Research Investment Fund: Comprehensive Supportive Services for Proof of 
Concept and Commercialization, in accordance with Va. Code § 23.1-3133 C. 
This authorization further delegates to the VRIC chair the authority to approve 
(1) technical corrections and clarifications to the Call for Proposals throughout 
the application process and (2) applicants’ requests for protection from 
disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act, as described in the Call 
document. 

 
The resolution was approved unanimously. 

 
 

DISCUSSION AND PRELIMINARY ACTION – COMMONWEALTH RESEARCH AND 
TECHOLOGY STRATEGIC ROADMAP 
 
Mr. Blake stated that the statute enacting the Roadmap requires that the State Council of Higher 
Education for Virginia develop the new Roadmap and that the Governor and others then have 30 days 
to review and comment before the document returns to VRIC for potential further revisions and 
approval. He stated that the focus of today’s discussion would be on ensuring that members provide 
feedback on the proposed research areas of focus that Ms. Salmon would describe, thus ensuring 
that what Council would review on August 21 and what subsequently would be forwarded to the 
Governor and others for review would be consistent with members’ vision. 
 
Mr. Blake introduced Emily Salmon, SCHEV Senior Associate for Research Investment. 
 
Ms. Salmon presented a deck of PowerPoint slides. 



4 

 

 
Mr. Fralin stated that staff appeared to have developed the Roadmap within the framework of the 
legislation, but perhaps the document should include recommendations to government officials 
proposing changes to the statutory parameters of the Roadmap. His opinion was that the 
Commonwealth would be unlikely to appropriate funds adequate to support research at the level 
needed to “move the needle.” He suggested the focus of the Roadmap should be on 
commercialization and the needs for mentors and seed funds. 
 
Secretary Layne stated that he had combed through the state budget and found that significant 
funding is invested in research and economic development related to the commercialization of 
research. He stated that if those funding streams were coordinated and focused, Virginia could 
achieve better outcomes and impact. 
 
Mr. Vaughn said that the state should fund commercialization and also fund earlier-stage research 
that leads to commercialization. 
 
Ms. Kees stated that government moves more slowly than the business community wants. She stated 
that the state must move slower and not take risks with taxpayer dollars. She stated that the 
Roadmap process is pushing the state closer to Mr. Fralin’s vision. 
 
Secretary Layne stated that many people do not support government involvement and investment in 
any of the activities under discussion and that it is important to use taxpayer money wisely and show 
a positive impact in order to convince those people of the merit of continuing on this path. 
 
Secretary Ball stated that, if a technology meets a need in the market and is ready to be 
commercialized, then private investors should be funding it rather than the state. He stated that 
research should receive funding through grants from other sources and that VRIC funding should 
support a direct path to commercialization. He said that he agreed with Mr. Fralin that Virginia should 
support mentoring and seed funds with a return on investment in a reasonable amount of time. 
 
Ms. Kees moved the following resolution, seconded by Mr. Dyke. 
 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Virginia Research Investment Committee authorizes the 
chair to (1) oversee the incorporation of members' input into the draft 
Commonwealth Research and Technology Strategic Roadmap; (2) submit the 
revised draft Roadmap document to the State Council of Higher Education for 
Virginia at its August 21 meeting; and (3) submit the resultant draft Roadmap 
document to the Governor, the Chairs of the Senate Finance and House 
Appropriations committees and the Joint Commission on Technology and 
Science at least 30 days prior to VRIC's October 8 meeting, as required by 
statute. 

 
The resolution was approved unanimously. 
 
 
UPDATES TO COMMITTEE 
 

a. Global Genomics and Bioinformatics Research Institute 
 
Mr. Blake introduced David Wilkes, Dean of the University of Virginia School of Medicine. Dr. 
Wilkes introduced Zobair Younossi, Acting Chair of Clinical Research at INOVA, and Deborah 
Crawford, Vice President for Research at George Mason University. 
 



5 

 

Dr. Wilkes presented a deck of PowerPoint slides. 
 
Secretary Ball asked how the University of Virginia and George Mason University were working 
together with other institutions. 
 
Dr. Wilkes stated that the inclusion of population health as a focus area facilitates collaboration 
between institutions because many more institutions have experts working in that area. 
 
Dr. Younassi stated that the new vision of applying genomics to population research would prove 
more meaningful to the Commonwealth. He said the new vision is a more mature refinement of 
the original plan. 
 
Dr. Wilkes stated that other institutions are welcome to recruit faculty into the institute. He 
provided an update on the seed grants awarded thus far for inter-institutional faculty collaboration 
on research. He said those seed grants funded projects that yielded many publications. 
 
Dr. Crawford stated that a grant awarded by the Center for Innovative Technology partially funded 
the recruitment of an eminent scholar who will have a lab in Building 3 on the INOVA campus. She 
said that INOVA co-funded the new researcher. 
 
Dr. Wilkes stated that NIH had awarded a Clinical and Translational Science Award grant to a 
partnership including INOVA, UVA, VT, and GMU. 
 
Mr. Fralin asked how many research teams the first building would house. 
 
Dr. Wilkes stated that the original plan had called for 28-32 teams to be located in that building; 
however, the new vision allows for more density, because population research teams require less 
space than research teams needing wet labs. He said the first building would house perhaps 20 
wet lab teams and far more population research teams. 
 
Mr. Vaughn asked when the partners would return to VRIC to seek the previously-allocated but 
still-unrequested $8 million in funding for eminent researcher recruitment. 
 
Dr. Wilkes stated that they would return after the construction is complete, because recruiting 
eminent scholars to an unfinished space is impractical if not impossible. 
 
Mr. Dyke stated that GGBRI must be aggressive in the outreach to additional institutional partners 
and not rely on a coalition of the willing. 
 
Mr. Fralin stated that collaboration happens naturally, yielding the best results when researchers 
develop an idea and seek out complementary expertise to achieve it. He stated that forcing 
collaboration before development of ideas is not how collaboration works in the real world. 

 
b. Commonwealth Cyber Initiative – VRIC Workgroup Guidance Regarding Node Strategic 

Plans and Requests for Funding 
 

Mr. Blake introduced Lynn Seuffert, SCHEV Associate for Research Investment. 
 
Ms. Seuffert provided a brief overview of the structure and contents of the handout. 
 
VRIC members agreed that the document reflected their vision for funding regional nodes. 

 
 



6 

 

ACTION ON VRIF ROUND 2 – RESEARCH CENTER CAPACITY BUILDING 
 
Mr. Blake reminded members of the events that led to the Round 2 VRIF proposal presented before 
them today. Members agreed that no need existed to enter closed session for further discussion. 
 
Mr. Juanarena moved the following resolution, seconded by Mr. Dyke. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Virginia Research Investment Committee approves the 

award of funding from the Virginia Research Investment Fund for the application 
entitled: “Virginia SmallSat Data Consortium.” 

Lead Institution: Old Dominion University 
Principal Investigator: Saikou Diallo, PhD 
Amount: up to $1,500,000 

 
The resolution was approved unanimously. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Mr. Blake reminded members that for their October 8 meeting, they would convene from 3:00 to 5:00 
p.m. at the Pocahontas Building. He stated that the meeting would afford members the opportunity to 
review and, if acceptable, adopt a formal policy regarding members’ electronic participation in 
meetings when in-person participation is not possible for personal reasons. 
 
Mr. Blake adjourned the meeting at 11:20 a.m. 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________________  
Peter Blake 
Chair, Virginia Research Investment Committee 

 
 

______________________________________________  
Lynn Seuffert 
Associate for Research Investment 


